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not wish that I should be required to say twice what I am
now going to lay down. We ask fifteen dollars for all that
you see, and for the children that are to be born in future.
This year only we ask for fifteen dollars; years after ten dol-
lars; our Chiefs fifty dollars per year for every year, and other
demands of large amounts in writing, say £125,000 yearly.”

Axoruer Chier—“I take my standing point from here.
Our councillors have in council come to this conclusion, that
they should have twenty dollars each; our warriors, fifteen
dollars; our population, fifteen dollars. We have now laid
down the conclusion of our councils by our decisions. We tell
you our wishes are not divided. We are all of one mind.”
(Paper put in before the Governor for these demands.)

Curer—“1 now let you know the opinions of us here. We
would not wish that anyone should smile at our affairs, as we
think our country is a large matter to us. If you grant us
what is written on that paper, then we will talk about the
reserves; we have decided in council for the benefit of those
that will be born hereafter. If you do so the treaty will be
finished, T believe.”

GoverNor—*“I quite agree that this is no matter to smile at.
I think that the decision of to-day is one that affects yourselves
and your children after, but you must recollect that this is the
third time of negotiating. If we do not shake hands and make
our Treaty to-day, I do not know when it will be done, as the
Queen’s Government will think you do not wish to treat with
her.  You told me that you understood that I represented the
Queen’s Government to you and that I opened my heart to
you, but you must recollect that if yow are a council there is an-
other great council that governs a great Dominion, and they
hold their councils the same as you hold yours. 1 wish to tell
you that T am a servant of the Queen. I cannot do my own
will; I must do hers. I can only give you what she tells me
to give you. I am sorry to see that your hands were very wide
open when you gave me this paper. I thought what I pro-
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mised you was just, kind and fair between the Qeeen and you.
Tt is now three years we have been trying to settle this matter.
If we do not succeed to-day I shall go away feeling sorry for
you and for your children that you could not see what was
good for you and for them. T am ready to do what I promised
you yesterday. My hand is open and you ought to take me
by the hand and say, “yes, we accept of your offer.” I have
not the power to do what you ask of me. I ask you once more
to think what you are doing, and of those you have left at
home, and also of those that may be born yet, and 1 ask you
not to turn your backs on what is offered to you, and you ought
to see by what the Queen is offering you that she loves her red
subjects as much as her white. I think you are forgetting one
thing, that what I offer you is to be while the water flows and
the sun rises. You know that in the United States they only
pay the Indian for twenty years, and you come here to-day and
ask for ever more than they get for twenty years. Is that
just? I think you ought to accept my offer, and make a treaty
with me as I ask you to do. I only ask you to think for
yourselves, and for your families, and for your children and
children’s children, and I know that if you do that you will
shake hands with me to-day.”

Cuter—* I lay before you our opinions. Our hands are poor
but our heads are rich, and it is riches that we ask so that we
may be able to support our families as long as the sun rises and
the water runs.”

GovERNOR—*“T am very sorry: you know it takes two to
make a bargain; you are agreed on the one side, and I for the
Queen’s Government on the other. I have to go away and
report that I have to go without making terms with you. 1
doubt if the Commissioners will be sent again to assemble this
nation. I have only one word more to say; I speak to the
Chief and to the head men to recollect those behind them, and
those they have left at home, and not to go away without
accepting such liberal terms and without some clothing.”
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Crrer— My terms I am going to lay down before you; the
decision of our Chiefs; eve
push it back. Z%he sound of the rustling of the gold is under
t is the Great
Spirit who gave us this; where we stand upon is the Indians’

nce we came to a decision you

my feet wheve I stand ; we have a rich countr:

property, and belongs to them. If you grant u:
you will not go back without making the treaty

Axorner Caier—¢ We understood yesterday that the Queen
had given you the power to act upon, that you could do what
you pleased, and that the riches of the Queen she had filled
your head and body with, and you had only to throw them
round about; but it seems it is not so, but that you have only
half the power that she has, and that she has ouly half filled
your head.”

GovErNOR—T do not like to be misunderstood. T did not
say yesterday that the Queen had given me all the power; what
T told you was that I was sent here to represent the Queen’s
Government, and to tell you what the Queen was willing to do
for you. You can understand very well; for instance, one of
your great chicfs asks a brave to deliver a message, he repr
sents you, and that is how I stand with the Queen’s Govern-
ment.”

our requests

Cier—“It is your charitableness that you spoke of yester-
day—Her Majesty’s charitableness that was given you. It is
our chiefs, our young men, our children and great grand-
children, and those that are to be born, that T represent here,
and it is for them I ask for terms. The white man has robbed
us of our riches, and we don’t wish to give them up again with-
out getting something in their place.”

GovERNOR—* For your children, grandchildren, and children
unborn, T am sorry that you will not accept of my terms. T
shall go home sorry, but it is your own doing; T must simply
go back and report the fact that you refuse to make a treaty
with me.”

Crier—* You see all our chiefs before you here as one mind;
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we have one mind and one mouth. Tt is the decision of all of
us; if you grant us our demands you will not go back sorrow-
ful ; we would not refuse to wake a treaty if you would grant

us our demands.”
GovERNOR—“T ha
your demands; T have not the power to do so. T have made

e told you already that T cannot grant

you a liberal offer, and it is for you to accept or refuse it as
you please.”

Crree—“ Qur chiefs have the same opinion; they will not
change their decision.”

GovERNOR—*“Then the Council is at an end.”

Cuier (of Lac Seule)—“T understand the matter that he
asks; if he puts a question to me as well as to others, T
say so as well as the rest. We are the first that were planted

here ; we would ask you to assist us with every kind of imple-
ment to use for our benefit, to enable us to perform our work ;
alittle of everything and money. We would borrow your cattle;
we ask you this for our support; T will find whereon to feed
them. The waters out of which you sometimes take food for
yourselves, we will lend you in return. 1f I should try to stop
you—it is not in my power to do so; even the Hudson's Bay
Company—that is a small power—I cannot gain my point with it.

If you give what T ask, the time may come when T will ask you

to lend me one of your daughters and one of your sons to live
with us ; and in return T will lend you one of my daughters and
one of my sons for you to teach what is good, and after they
have learned, to teach us.  If you grant us what I ask, although
I do not know you, I will shake hands with you. This is all T
have to say,”

GOVERNOR.
I have learned that you are not all of one mind. T know that
your interests are not the same—that some of you live in the
north far away from the river ; and some live on the river, and
that you have got large sums of money for wood that you have
cut and sold to the steamboats ; but the men in the north have

I have heard and I have learned something,
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not this advantage. What the Chief has said is reasonable ; and
should you want goods I mean to ask you what amount you
would have in goods, so that you would not have to pay the
traders’ prices for them. I wish you were all of the same mind
as the Chief who has just spoke He wants his childrew to be
taught. He is right. He wants to get cattle to help him to
raise grain for his children. It would be a good thing for you
all to be of his mind, and then you would not go away without
making this treaty with me.”

Brackstoxs (Shebandowan)— T am going to Iay down be-
fore you the minds of those who are here. I do not wish to

interfere with the decisions of those who are before you, or
yet with your decisions. The people at the height of land where
the waters came down from Shebandowan to Fort Frances, are
on. We

those who have appointed me to lay before you our de
are going back to hold a Council.”

Mr. Dawson— T would ask the Chief who has just spoken,
did the hand at Shebandowan—did Rat McKay, authorize him
to speak for them?  Ke-ha-k
and I am perfect
‘What I have to sa
representations made to them, and that the two bands met me

ge-nen is Blackstone’s own Chief;

willing to think that he authorized him.
is that the Indians may not be deceived by

at Shebandowan and said they were perfectly willing to enter
into a treaty.”

GoverNor— I think the nation will do well to do what the
Chief has said. I think he has spoken sincerely, and it is right
for them to withdraw and hold a Council among themselves.”

Blackstone here handed in a paper which he alleged gave
him authority as Chief, but which proved to be an official
acknowledgement of the receipt of a letter by the Indian De-
partment at Ottawa.

The Governor here agreed with the Council that it would be
well for the Chiefs to have another meeting amongst them-

selves. It was a most important day for them and for their
children, and His Excellency would be glad to meet them again,
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The Council broke up at this point, and it was extremely
doubtful whether an agreement could be come to or not. The
Rainy River Indians were careless about the treaty, because
they could get plenty of money for cutting wood for the boats,
but the northern and eastern bands were anxious for one. The
ed that he would make a treaty with those bands

Governor dec
that were willing to accept his terms, leaving out the few dis-
affected ones. A Council was held by the Indians in the even-
ing, at which Hon. James McKay, Pierre Léveillée, Charles
Nolin, and Mr. Genton were present by invitation of the
Chiefs.  After a very lengthy and exhaustive discussion, it was
decided to a
was announced for Friday morning. Punctually at the appointed
time proceedings were opened by the Fort Francis Chiefs
announcing to His Excellency that they were all of one mind,
and would accept his terms, with a few modifications. The

ept the Governor’s terms, and the final meeting

five hours, and met every

discussion of these terms occupi
possible contingency so fully that it would be impossible to do
justice to the negotiators otherwise than by giving a full report
of the speeches on both sides ; but want of space compels us to
lay it over until next week.

The treaty was finally closed on Friday afternoon, and signed
on Saturday ; after which a large quantity of provisions, ammu-
nition and other goods were distributed.

When the council broke up last (Thursday) night, 3rd Octo-
, it looked very improbable that an understanding could be
of the Governor, and the prospect
that he would make a treaty with such of the bands as were
willing to accept his terms, to the exclusion of the others, led
them to reconsider their demands. The Hon. James McKay,
and Messrs. Nolin, Genton, and Léveillee were invited in to their
council, and after o most exhaustive discussion of the circum-
stance in which they were placed, it was resolved to accept the
Governor’s terms, with some modifications, Word was sent to
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this effect, and at eleven o’clock on Friday, conference was again
held with His Excellency.

The Fort Francis Chief opened negotiations by saying :—
“We present our compliments to you, and now we would tell
you something.  You have mentioned our councillors, warriors
and messengers—every Chief you see has his councillors, war-
riors and messengers.”

Govervor—*“T was not aware what names they gave me—
they gave their chief men. I spoke of the subordinates of the
head Chiefs ; I believe the head Chiefs have three subordinates
—1I mean the head Chief and three of his head men.”

Carer
I want to see your power and learn the most liberal terms that

T am going to tell you the decision of all before you.

you can give us.”

GovERNOR—“T am glad to meet the Chiefs, and I hope it will
be the last time of our meeting. I hope we are going to under-
derstand one-another to-day. And that T can go back and re-
port that T left my Indian friends contented, and that I have
put into their hands the means of providing for themselves
and their families at home ; and now T will give you my last
words.  When I held out my hands to you at first, I intended
to do what was just and right, and what T had the power to do
at onee,—not to go backwards and forwards, but at once to do

what T believe is just and right to you. I was very much
pleased yesterday with the words of the Chief of Lac Seul. I
was glad to hear that he had commenced to farm and to raise
things for himself and family, and I was glad to hear him ask
me to hold out my hand. T think we should do everything to
help you by giving you the means to grow some food, so that
if it is a bad year for fishing and hunting you may have some-
thing for your children at home. If you had not asked it the
Goverment would have done it all the same, although T had not
said so before. T can say this, that when a band settles down
and actually commencss to farm on their lands, the Goverment
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will agree to give two hoes, one spade, one seythe, and one axe
for every family actually settled ; one plough for every ten famil-
jes; five harrows for every twenty families; and a yoke of
oxen, a bull and four cows for every band ; and enough barley,
wheat and oats to plant the land they have actually broken
up. This is to enable them to cultivate their land, and it is
to be given them on their commencing to do so, once for all.
There is one thing that I have thought over, and I think it is
a wise thing to do. That is to give you ammunition, and twine
for making nets, to the extent of $1,500 per year, for the whole
nation, so that you can have the means of procuring food.—
Now, I will mention the last thing that I can do. I think
that the sum I have offered you to be paid after this year for
and for years to come, is
um, I will not make any change in

every man, woman and child now,
right and is the prop
that, but we are anxious to show you that we have a great
desire to understand you—that we wish to do the utmost in our

power to make you contented, so that the white and the red
man will always be friends.  This year, instead of ten dollars we
will give you twelve dollars, to be paid you at once as soon as we
sign the treaty. This is the best I can do for you. T wish you to
understand we do not come here as traders, but as representing
the Crown, and to do what we believe is just and right. We
have asked in that spirit, and T hope you will meet me in that
spirit and shake hands with me-day and make a treaty for

ever. 1 have no more to say.”

Crrer—4T wish to ask some points that I have not properly
understood.  We understand that our children are to have two
dollars extra.  Will the two dollars be paid to our principal
menas well?  And these things that are promised will they
commence at once and will we see it year after year I

GovErNOR—*T thought I had spoken fully as to everything,
but I will speak again. The ammunition and twine will be got
at once for you, this year, and that will be for every year. The
Commissioner will see that you get this at once; with regard
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to the things to help you to farm, you must recollect, in a very
few days the river will be frozen up here and we have not got
these things here now. But arrangements will be made next
year to get these things for those who are farming, it cannot be
done before as you can see yourselves very well. Some are
farming, and I hope you will all do so.”

Crier—One thing I did not say that is most necessary—
we want a cross-cut saw, a whip saw, grindstone and files.”

GoverNor—*“ We will do that, and I think we ought to give
a box of common tools to each Chief of 2 Band.”

Crier—* Depending upon the words you have told us, and
stretched out your hands in a friendly way, I depend upon that.
One thing more we demand—a suit of clothes to all of us.”

fovERNOR—* With regard to clothing, suits will be given to
the Chiefs and head men, and as to the other Indians there is a
quantity of goods and provisions here that will be given them
at the close of the treaty. The coats of the Chiefs will be given
every three years,

Cmer— Once more ; powder and shot will not go off with-
out guns. We ask for guns.”

GoverNor—“T have shewn every disposition to meet your
view, but what I have promised is as far as T can go.”

Crtzr— My friends, listen to what [ am going to say, and
you, my brothers. We pi
strongest compliments. We ask you not to rej
children who have gone out of our place; they are scattered all
over, a good tasted meat hath drawn them away, and we wish
to draw them all here and be contented with us.”

GovERNOR—* If your children come and live here, of course
they will become part of the population, and be as yourselves.”

Crter—¢ T hope you will grant the request that I am going
to lay before you. I do not mean those that get paid on the
other side of the line, but some poor Indians who may happen
to fallin our road. If you will accept of these little matters,
the treaty will be at an end. I would not like that one of my

esent you now with our best and our

't some of our
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children should not eat with me, and receive the food that you
are going to give me.”

GoveErNor—*“1 am dealing with British Indians and not
American Indians ; after the treaty is closed we will have a
list of the names of any children of British Indians that may
come in during two years and be ranked with them ; but we
must have a limit somewhere.”

Cner— I should not feel happy if T was not to mess with
some of my children that are around me—those children that
we call the Half-breed—those that have been born of our women
of Indian blood. We wish that they should be counted with
us, and have their share of what you have promised. We wish
you to accept our demands. Tt is the Hali-breeds that are
actually living amongst us—those that are married to our

women.”

Goverzor—“T am sent here to treat with the Indians. In
Red River,
of Half-breeds, they must be either white or Indian. If
Indians, they get treaty money ; if the Half-breeds call them-
selves white, they to refer the matter
to the Government at Ottawa, and to recommend what you

where T came from, and where there is a great body

et land.  All I can do is

wish to be granted.”

Crier—<T hope you will not drop the question ; we have
understood you to say that you came here as a friend, and
represented your charitableness, and we depend upon your
kindnes
are like paper ; we never forget. There is one thing that we
want to know. If you should get into trouble with the nations,
T do not wish to walk out and expose my young men to aid you
in any of your wars.”

GoverNor—*“The English never call the Indians out of their
country to fight their battles. You are living here and the
Queen expects you to live at peace with the white men and
your red brothers, and with other nations.”

Axorner Crier—¢“1 ask you a question—I see your roads

You must remember that our hearts and our brains
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here passing through the country, and some of your boats—
useful articles that you use for yourselt. Bye and bye we shall
see things that run swiftly, that go by fire—carriages—and we
ask you that us Indians may not have to pay their passage on
these things, but can go free.”

Govervor—T think the best thing I can do is to become an
Indian. I cannot promise you to pass on the railroad free, for
it may be a long time before we get one; and I cannot promise
you any more than other people.”

Cuier—*Tmust address myself to my friend here, as he is the
one that has the Public Works.”

Mz, DawsoN— T am always happy to do anything I can for
you. I have always given you a passage on the boats when T
could. T will act as I have done though I can give no positive
promise for the future.”

Crrer—“ We must have the privilege of travelling about the
country where it is vacant.”

Mz, McKay— Of course, I told them so.”

Cuier—*Should we discover any metal that was of use,
could we have the privilege of putting our own price on it 1”

GoverNor—*“If any important minerals are discovered on
any of their reserves the minerals will be sold for their benefit
with their consent, but not on any other land ¢
may take place upon ; as regards other discoveries, of course,

at discoveries

the Indian is like any other man. He can sell his information
if he can find a purchaser.”

Citgr— Tt ywill be as well while we are here that everything
should be und
behind us—

stood properly between us. Al of us—those

h to have their reserves marked out, which
they will point out, when the time comes. There is not one
tribe here who has not laid it out.”

CoxymissioNer Prov,
arily absent)— As soon as it is convenient to the Government
to send surveyors to lay out the reserves they will do so, and
they will try to suit every particular band in this respect.”

® (the Governor being tempor-
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Cnter—“We do not want anybody to mark out our reserves,
we have already marked them out.”

CommssioNer—* There will be another undertaking between
the officers of the Government and the Indians among them-
selves for the selection of che land ; they will have enough of
good farming land, they may be sure of that.”

Cuter— Of course, if there is any particular part wanted
by the public works they can shift us. I understand that ;
but if we have any gardens through the country, do you wish
that the poor man should throw it right away 1

CommissioNER—* Of course not.”

Crter—These are matters that are the wind-up. T begin
now to see how I value the proceedings. I have come to this

point, and all that are taking part in this treaty and yourself.
T would wish to have all your names in writing handed over to
us. Twould not find it to my convenience to have a stranger here
to transact our business between me and you. It is a white
man who does not understand our language that is taking it
down. T would like a man that understands our language and
our w

We would ask your Excellency as a favor to appoint
him for us.”

Goverxor—1 have a very good feeling to Mr. ¢, Nolin,
he has been a good man h

; but the appointment of an
Agent rests with the authorities at Ottawa and I will bring
your representation to t]lem and I am quite sure it will meet

with the respect due to i

Cnrer— As regards the fire water, I do not like it and T do
not wish any house to be built to have it sold. Perhaps at
times if T should be unwell T might take drop just for medicine ;
and shall any one insist on bringing it where we are, I should
break the treaty.”

Goveryor—“T meant to have spoken of that myself, T meant
to put it in the treaty. He speaks good about it. The Queen
and her Parliament in Ottawa have passed a law prohibiting the
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use of it in this territory, and if any shall be brought in for the
use of you as medicine it can only come in by my permission.”
Crier—“Why we keep you so long is that it is our wish
that everything should be properly understood between us.”
GoVERNOR—That is why T am here. Tt is my pleasure, and
I want when we once shake hands that it should be forever.”
Crier—“That is the principal article. If it was in my
midst the fire water would have spoiled my happiness, and I
wish it to be left far away from where T am. Al the promises
that you have made me, the little promises and the money you
have promised, when it comes to me year after year—should T

see that there is anything wanting, through the negligence of
the people that have to see after these things, I trust it will

be in my power to put them in prison.” /

GovERNOR—“The ear of the Queen’s Government will alway
be open to hear the complaints of her Indian people, and she
will deal with her servants that do not do their duty in a proper
manner.”

Crier—¢Now you have promised to give us all your names.
I want a copy of the treaty that will not be rubbed off, on
parchment.”

GovERNOR—*“In the mean time I will give you a copy on
paper, and as soon as I get back I will get you a copy on
parchment.”

Crrer—+1 do not wish to be treated as they were at Red
River—that provisions should be stopped as it is there, When-
ever we meet and have a council I wish that provisions should
be given to us. We cannot speak without eating.”

GoverNor—* You are mistaken. When they are brought
together at Red River for their payments they get provisions.”

Crrer—“ We wish the provisions to come from Red River.”

GoverNor—* If the Great Spirit sends the grasshopper and
there is no wheat grown in Red River, we cannot give it to

you.
Crer—* You have come before us with a smiling face, you
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have shown us great charity—you have promised the gnod
things ; you have given us your best compliments and v
not only for once but for ever ; let there now for ever o p
and friendship between us. It is the wis
our reserves are peace should reign, that nothing shall be there
that will disturb peace. Now, I will want nothing to be there
that will disturb peace, and will put every one that carries
arms,—such as murderers and thieves—outside, so that nothing
will be there to disturb our peace.”

GoverNor—*The Queen will have policemen to preserve
order, and murderers and men guilty of crime will be punished
in this country just the same as she punishes them herself.”

Citer—To speak about the Hudson’s Bay Company. If it
happens that they have surveyed where I have taken my
reserve, if I sce any of their signs I will put them on ome
side.”

GovERNOR—*When the reserves are given you, you will have
your rights. The Hudson’s Bay Company have their rights
and the Queen will do justice between you.”

Cuier oF Forr FraNcis—“ Why I say this is, where I have
chosen for my reserve I see signs that the H. B. Co. has surveyed.
I do not hate them. I only wish they should take their
reserves on one side. Where their shop stands now is my
property ; I think it is three years now since they have had it
on it.”

GovERNOR—“T do not know about that matter; it will be
enquired into. I am taking notes of all these things and am
putting them on paper.”

Cuier—I will tell you one thing. You understand me now,
that T have talen your hand firmly and in friendship. I repeat
twice that you have done so, that these promises that you have
made, and the treaty to be concluded, let it be as you promise,
as long as the sun rises over our head and as long as the water
runs. One thing I find, that deranges a little my kettle, In
this river, where food used to be plentiful for our subsistence,

6

of all that where
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I perceive it is getting scarce. We wish that the river should
be left as it was formed from the beginning—that nothing be
broken.”

GoveErNOR—* This is a subject that 1 cannot promise.”

Mz. DawsoN— Anything that we are likely to do at pres-
ent will not interfere with the fishing, but no one can tell what
the future may require, and we cannot enter into any engage-
ment.”

Crier—“ We wish the Government would assist us in get-
ting a few boards for some of us who are intending to put up
houses this fall, from the mill at Fort Francis.”

GoverNOR—*“The mill is a private enterprise, and we have
no power to give you hoards from that.”

CrEF—“T will now show you a medal that was given to
those who made a treaty at Red River by the Commissioner.
He said it was silver, but 7 do not think it is. I should be
ashamed to carry it on my breast over my heart. I think it
would disgrace the Queen, my mother, to wear her image on so
base a metal as this. [Here the Chief held up the medal and
struck it with the back of his knife. The result was anything
but the true ring,” and made every man ashamed of the petty

that had been ised.] Let the medals you give
us be of silver—medals that shall be worthy of the high posi-
tion our Mother the Queen occupies.”

GoverNor—“I will tell them at Ottawa what you have said,
and Aow you have said it.”

Curer—“ I wish you to understand you owe the treaty much
to the Half-breeds.”

GoverNor—“T know it. I sent some of them to talk with
you, and I am proud that all the Half-breeds from Manitoba,
who are here, gave their Governor their cordial support.”

The business of the treaty having now been completed, the
Chief, Mawedopenais, who, with Powhassan, had with such
wonderful tact carried on the negotiations, stepped up to the
Governor and said :—
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“Now you see me stand before you all ; what has been done
here to-day has been done openly bhefore the Great Spirit, end
before the nation, and T hope that T m:
say that this treaty has been done seer
this Council, T tako off my glove, and in giving you my hand,
I deliver over my birthright and lands ; and in taking your

never hear any one

; and now, in closing

hand, I hold fast all the promises you have made, and I hope
they will last as long as the sun goes round and the water
flows, as you have said.”

The Governor then took his hand and said:

“I aceept your hand and with it the lands, and will keep all
my promises, in the firm beliof that the treaty now to be signed
will bind the red man and the white together as friends for
ever.”

A copy of the treaty was then prepared and duly signed,
after which a large amount of prasents, con
clothing, blankets, twine, powder and shot, et

to the several bands represented on the ground.

On Saturday, Mr. Pether, Local Superintendent of Indian
Affairs at Fort Francis, and Mr. Graham of the Government
Works, began to pay the treaty money—an employment that
kept them busy far into the night. Some of the Chiefs
received as much as one hundred and seventy dollars for them-
selves and families.

As soon as the money was distributed the shops of the H. B.
Co., and other resident traders were visited, as well as the tents
of numerous private traders, who had been attracted thither by
the prospect of doing a good business. And while these shops
all did a great trade—the H. B. Co. alone taking in $4,000 in
thirty hours—it was a noticeable fact that many took home
with them nearly all their money. When urged to buy goods
there, a frequent reply was : “If we spend all our money here
and go home and want debt, we will be told to get our debt
where we spent our money. “Debt” is used by them instead
of tho word “credit.” Many others deposited mouney with
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white men and Half-breeds on whose honor they could depend,
to be called for and spent at Fort Garry when “the ground
froze.”

One very wonderful thing that forced itself on the attention
of every one was the perfect order that prevailed throughout
the camp, and which more particularly marked proceedings in
the council. Whether the demands put forward were granted
by the Governor or not, there was no petulance, no ill-feeling,
evinced ; but everything was done with a calm dignity that was
pleasing to behold, and which might be copied with advantage
by more pretentious deliberative assemblies.

On Sunday afternoon, the Governor presented an ox to the
nation, and after it had been caten a grand dance was indulged
in. Monday morning the river Indians took passage on the
steamer for Fort Francis, and others left in their canoes for

their winter quarters.

The Governor and party left on Monday morning, the troops,
under command of Captain McDonald, who had conducted
themselves with the greatest propriety, and had contributed, by
the moral effect of their presence, much to the success of the
negotiation, having marched to Fort Garry on Saturday morn-

ing.
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CHAPTER VI

THE QU'AP

HIS treaty, is, so generally called, from having been made

at the Qu’Appelle Lakes, in the North-West Territories.

The Indians treated with, were a portion of the Cree and
Saulteaux !Tribes, and under its operations, about 75,000
square miles of territory were surrendered. This
the first step towards bringing the Indians of the Fertile Belt
into closer relations with the Government of Canada,and was a

reaty, was

much-needed one.  In the year 1871, Major Butler was sent
into the North-West Territories by the Government of Canada,
to examine into and report, with regard to the state of affairs
there.  Ho reported, to Lieutenant-Governor Archibald, that
“law and order are wholly unknown in the region of the
Saskatchewan, in so much, as the country is without any
exseative orgwization, and destitute of any means of enforcing
5 {ous state of affairs, the
Dominion placed the North-West Territories under the rule
of the Lisu Territories, the
Lieutenant-Governor of Manitoba, being, ez offizio, Governor
of the Territori
men, possessed ex
They entered upon their duties with zeal, and discharged them
with efficiency. Amongst other measures, they passed a pro-

the law.”  Towards rem>1ying this s

nant-Governor and Council of the

This body, composed of representative

utive functions, and legislative powers.

hibitory liquor law, which subsequently was practically adopted
by a Statute of the Dominion. They proposed the establishment
of a Mounted Police Force, a suggestion which was given force
to by the Dominion Cabinet,and they recommended, that, treaties
should be made, with the Tndians at Forts Qu' Appelle, Carlton



78  The Treaties of Canada with the Indians.

and Pitt, recommendations, which, were all, eventually, carried
out. In the report of the Minister of the Interior, for the
year 1875, he states  that it is due to the Council to record the
fact, that the legislation and valuable suggestions, submitted
to your Excellency, from time to time, through their official
head, Governor Morris, aided the Government_ not a little in
the good work of laying the foundations of law and order, in
the North-West, in securing the good will of the Indian tribes,
and in establishing the prestige of the Dominion Government,
throughout that vast country.” TIn accordance with these sug-
gestions, the Government of the Dominion, decided, on effect-
ing a treaty, with the plain Indians, Crees and Chippawas, who
inhabit the country, of which, Fort Qu’ Appelle
centre, and entrusted the duty, to the Hon. Alexander Morris
enant-Governor of Manitoba and the North-West
Territories, the Hon. David Laird, then Minister of the
tenant-Governor of the North-West
Territories, and the Hon. W. J. Christie, a retired factor of
the Hudson’s Bay Company, and a gentleman of large experi-
ence, umong the Indian tribes,

In pursuance of this mission, these gentlemen left Fort
Garry in August, 1874, and journeyed to Lake QuAppelle (the
calling or echoing lake), where they met the assembled Indians,
in Septembor. The Commissioners, had an escort of militia,
under the command of Lieut.-Col. Osborne Smith, C.M.G. This
foree marched to and from Qu’Appelle, acquitted themselves
with signal propriety, and proved of essential service. Their
return march was made in excellent time. The
hundred and fifty miles hav
and a half days.

as a convenient

Interior, and now L

stance, three
2 been accomplished in sixteen

The C issi 1 great difficulties, arising,
B dmti e i jeal-
ousies, existing botween the two Nations, Crees and Chip-
pawas, but by perseverance, firmness and tact, they suceceded
in overcoming the obstacles, they ad to encounter, and

from the ex
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eventually effected a treaty, whereby the Indian title was ex-
000 square
miles of territory. After long and animated discussions the
Indians, asked to be granted the same terms as were accorded
to the Tndians of Treaty Number Three, at the North-West
Angle, hereinbef 1. The Commi assented
to their request and the treaty was signed accordingly.

tinguished in a tract of country, embracing 7

On the return, of the Commissioners to Fort Ellice, they met
there, the Chippawas of that vicinage, and made a supple-
mentary treaty with them. These Indians were included in
the boundaries of Treaty Number Two, but had not been
treated with, owing to their distance from Manitoba House,
where that treaty was made. In 1875, the Hon. W. J.
Christie, and Mr. M. G. Dickieson, then of the Department of
the Interior, and subsequently, Assistant Superintendent of
Indian affairs, in the North-West Territorics, were appointed

to make the payments of annuities, to the Indians, embraced
in the Treaty Nunber Four, and obtain the adhesion of other
bands, which had not been present at Qu Appelle, the previous
year. They met, the Indians, at Qu'Appelle (where six Chiefs
who had been absent, accepted the terms of the treaty) and at
Fort Pelly and at Shoal River, where two other Chiefs, with
their bands, came into the treaty stipulations. A gratifying
feature connected with the making of this, and the other,
North-Western Treaties, has been the readiness, with which
the Tndians, who were absent, afterwards accepted the terms -
which hadbeen settled for them, by those, who were able to
attend. T close these observations, by annexing, the reports of
Lieutenant-Governor Morris, to the Honorable the Secretary
of State of Canada, of date 17th October, 1874, giving, an
account, of the making of the treaties at Qu’Appelle and Fort
Ellice, and an extract, from that of Messrs. Christie and Dickie-
son, dated 7th October, 1875, describing its further completion,
and I also insert, accurate short-hand reports of the proceedings
at Qu'Appelle and Fort Ellic

which, were made, at the time,
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by Mr. Dickieson, who, was present, at the treaty, as secretary
to the Commissioners. These will be found to be both interest-
ing and instructive.

N1 House,
Forr GarrY, MANITOBA, October 17, 1874

Str,—T have the honor to inform you that in compliance with the request
of the Government, T proceeded to Lake Quw'Appelle in company with the
Hon. David Laird, in order to act with him and W. J. Christie, Esq., as
Commissioners to negotiate a treaty with the tribes of Indians in that
region.

Mr. Laird and I laft Fort Garry on the 26th of August, and arrived at
Lake Qu'Appelle on the 8th of Sptember, Mr. Christie having gone in
advance of us to Fort Pelly.

We were accompanied on arri 5 by the escort of militia under the
command of Lieut.-Col. W. Osborne Smith, who had preceded us, but
whom we had overtaken.

The escort took up their encampment at a ver 'y desirable situation on the
edge of the lake, the Indians heing encamped at some distance,

The Commissioners were kindly provided with apartments by W. J.
McLean, Esq., the officer in charge of the Hudson Bay Company’s Post.

Afber our arrival, the Commissioners caused the Indians to be summoned,
to meet them, in a marquee tent adjoining the encampment of the militia,

The Cress came healed by their principal Chief *“ Loud Voice,” and a
number of Saulteaux followed, without their Chief, Coté. The Commis-
sioners, having decided that it was desirable that there should be only one
spaaker on behalf of the Commissioners, requested me owing tomy previous
exparience with the Indian tribes and my official position as Lieutenant-
Governor of the North-West Territories, to undertake the duty, which T
agreed to do.  Accordingly, I told the Indians the object of our coming and
invited them to present to us their Chiefs and headmen.  “Loud Voice »
stated that they were not yet ready and asked for a delay till next day, to
which we assen

On the 9¢h, four Indian soldiers were sent to the Commissioners to ask
for two days delay, but we repliel that when they met us in conference
they could prefer any reasonable request, but that we expected them to
meet us as agreed on the previous day, and further that the Saulteaux had
not conducted themselves with proper respect to the Commissioners, as
representatives of the Crown, as their principal Chief Coté had not met us,
Eventually, both the Crees and the Saulteaux met us, with their Chiefs,
when I addressed them. They asked time to deliberate and ‘we appointed
the 11th at ten o'clock for the next conference,
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The Crees then left the tent suddenly, under constraint of the Indian
soldiers, who compelled the Chiefs to go.

On the 11th we sent a bugler round to summon the Indians to the appointed
conference, but they did not come.

Instead the Saulteaux sent word that they could not meet us except in
their own soldiers tent, distant about a mile from the militia encampment,
but we refused to do so.

The Crees were ready to proceed to the marquee, but were prevented by
the Saulteanx, a section of whom displayed a turbulent disposition and
were numerically the strongest party. We sent our interpreter Charles
Pratt, a Cree Indian, who was educated at St. John's College here, and who
is a catechist of the Church of England, to tell the Indians that they must
meet us as agreed upon.

In consequence, about four o'clock in the afternoon, the Crees led by
*“Loud Voice,” came to the conference, but the Saulteaux kept away, though
a number were sent to hear and report. On behalf of the Commissioners, T
then explained to the Crees the object of our mission and made our proposals
for a treaty, but as they were not ready to reply, we asked them to return to
their tents and meet us next day.

On the 12th the Crees and Saulteaux sent four men from the soldiers tent
or council, which they had org: ', to ask that the encampment of the
militia and the conference tents should be removed half way, towards their
encampment.

In consequence, we requested Licut.-Col. Smith to proceed to the Indian
encampment and ascertain the meaning of this demand, authorizing him, if
necessary, to arrange for the pitching of the conference tent neaver the
Indians, if that would give them any satisfaction.

He reported, on his return, that the Indians wished the militia to encamp
with them, and that they objected to meet us anywhere on the reserve of
the Hudson Bay Company, as they said they could not speak freely there.

He refused to remove the militia camp, as it a very desirable place
where it had been placed, but with the assent of the Indians selected a spot.
adjoining the reserve and at a suitable distance from the Indian tents, on
which the conference tent was to be daily erected, but to be removed after
the conferences closed.

‘We then summoned the Indians to meet us at one o'clock, which they did
at the appointed place.

After the formal hand shaking, which ceremony they repeat at the be-
ginning and close of every interview, the Commissioners submitted their
terms for a treaty, which were in effect similar to those granted at the
North-West Angle, except that the money present offered was eight dollars
per head, instead of twelve dollars as there.

The Indians declined, however, to talk about these proposals, as they said
there was something in the way. They objected to the reserve having been
surveyed for the Hudson Bay Company, without their first having been
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consulted, and claimed that the £300,000 paid to the Company should be paid
to them. They also objected to the Company’s trading in the Territory,
except only at their posts. The Commissioners refused to comply with their
demands, and explained to them how the Company had become entitled to
the reserve in question, and the nature of the arrangement, that had resulted
in the payment by the Government of Canada of the £300,000.

The conference adjourned to Monday the 14th, on which day the Com-
missioners again met them, but the Cree Chief *Loud Voice ” asked for
another day to consider the matter, and “Coté” or “Meemay” the
Saulteaux Chief, from Fort Pelly, asked to be treated with, at his own place.
They demanded, that the Company should oniy be allowed to trade at their
own posts, and not to send out traders into the Territory—which was of course
refused, it being explained to them that all Her Majesty’s subjects had
equal right of trading. The Commissioners then agreed to grant a final
delay of another day, for further consideration. Up to this period the
Pposition was very unsatisfactory.

The Crees were from the first ready to treat, as were the Saulteaux from
Fort Pelly, but the Saulteaux of the Qu’Appelle District were not disposed
to do so and attempted to coerce the other Indians.

They kept the Chiefs “Loud Voice” and *“Coté” under close surveillance,
they being either confined to their tents or else watched by “soldiers,” and
threatened if they should make any overtures to us.

The Saulteaux cut down the tent over the head of one of the Cree Chiefs
and conducted themselves in such a manner, that ‘ Loud Voice " applied to
the Commissioners for protection, and the Crees purchased knives and
armed themselves.

The Saulteaux, one day went the length of placing six ““soldiers,” armed
with rifles and revolvers, in the conference tent to intimidate the other
Indians, a step which was promptly counteracted by Lieut.-Col. Smith,
calling in six of the militiamen who were stationed in the tent, In this

ion, I must take the ity of stating that the results proved
the wisdom of the course taken by the Commissioners in obtaining the escort
of the militia, as their presence exerted great moral influence, and T am
persuaded, prevented the jealousies and ancient feud between the Crees and
Saulteaux culminating in acts of violence.

"The conduct of the whole force was excellent and, whether on the march or
in the encampment ground, they conducted themselves in a most creditable
manner,

Resuming, however, my narrative, on the 15th of September, the Com-
missioners again met the Indians at eleven o'clock in the forenoon.

The Crees had, in the interval, decided to treat with us independently,
and the Saulteaux, finding this, came to a similar conclusion.  After a
protracted interview, the Indians asked to be granted the same terms as
were given at the North-West Angle. The Commissioners took time to
consider and adjourned the conference until three o'clock.
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In the interval, the Commissioners, being persuaded that a treaty could
not otherwise be made, determined on acceding to the request of the
Indians.

The Indians, having again met the Commissioners in the afternoon,
presented their Chiefs to them, when they asked to be informed what the
terms granted at the North-West Angle were. These were fully and
carefully explained to them, but after a request that all the Indians owed to
the Hudson Bay Company should be wiped out and a refusal of the Com-
‘missioners to entertain their demands, they then asked that they should be
paid fifteen dollars per annum per head, which was refused, and they were
informed that the proposals of the Commissioners were final, and could not
be changed.

The Chiefs then agreed to accept the terms offered and to sign the treaty,
having first asked that the Half-breeds should be allowed to hunt, and
having been assured that the population in the North-West would be treated
fairly and justly, the treaty was signed by the Commissioners and the Chiefs,
having been first fully explained to them by the mzerpreter

were then made the
of the presents the next day, a duty which was discharged by Mr. Christie
and Mr. Dickieson, Private Secretary of the Hon. Mr. Laird.

T forward you to form an appendix to this despatch, a report marked A
and “B” extended from notes taken in short hand, by Mr. Dickieson, of the
various conferences and of the utterances of the Commissioners and the
Indians.

It is obvious that such a record will prove valuable, as it enables any
misunderstanding on the part of the Indians, as to what was said at the
conference, to be corrected, and it, moreover, will enable the council better
to appreciate the character of the difficulties that have to be encountered in
negotiating with the Indians.

On the 17th I left for Fort Ellice, in company with Mr. Laird, Mr. Christie
and Mr. Dickieson remaining to complete the payments, which were satis-
factorily disposed of.

Before leaving, the Chiefs *“Loud Voice ™ and Coté called on us to tender
their good wishes, and to assure us that they would teach their people to
respect the treaty.

The Commissioners received every assistance in their power from Mr.
MecDonald of Fort Ellice, in charge of the Hudson Bay Company. Dmmca
of Swan River, and from Mr. McLean, in charge of the Qu’Appelle Post, —]
also add, that the Half-breed population were I believe generally deslroua
of seeing the treaty concluded and used the influence of their connection
with the Indians in its favor.

I forward in another despatch a copy of an address I received from the
Metis, or Half-breeds, together with my reply thereto,

The treaty was taken charge of by the Hon. Mr. Laird, and will be by him
placed on record in his Department and submitted to council for approval,




84 The Treaties of Canada with the Indians.

T enclose herewith, however, a printed copy of it, marked “C,” to
accompany this despatch.

The supplementary treaty made at Fort Ellice will form the subject of
another despatch.

Trusting that the efforts of the Commissioners to secure a satisfactory
understanding with the Western Indians will result in benefit to the race,
advantage to the Dominion, and meet the approval of the Privy Council,

T have the honor to be, Sir,
Your abedient servant,

ALEXANDER MORRIS,
Lieut.-Gor. N. W. T.

Govenxvent House,
Foxr GaRrY, MANITOBA, October 17th, 1574

St —Referring to my despatch of the 17th inst., (No. 211) T have the
honor o report that Mr. Laird and T arrived at Fort Ellice from QuAppelle
Lakes, on Saturday the 19¢h of September.

On Monday, we met the band of Sanlt
headquarters at Fors Ellice, and who had rem
to Qu'Appelle at our request.

This band have been in the habit of migrating hetween the region covered
by the Second Treaty and that comprehended in the Fourth, but had not
been treated with.

We proposed to them to give their adhesion to the Qu'Appelle Treaty and
surrender their claim to lands, wherever situated, in the North-Wi
Territories, on being given a res nd being granted the terms on whi
the treaty in question was mad We explained fully these terms and asked
the Indians to present to us their Chief and headmen.
were absent, whom the Indians desired to be rec
e e cimayyero romsitad Thike, i ebalE ot Tdlar
accepted the terms and thanked the Queen and the Commissioners for their
care of the Indian people. A supplement to the treaty was then submitted
and fully explained to them, by our acting interpreter, Joseph Robillard,
after which it was signed by Mr. Laird and myself, and by the Chief and
head man.

The original of the supplementary treaty will be submitted for approval
by Mr. Laird, but T annex a printed copy of it, as an appendix to this
despateh.

T also annex, notes of the conference with these Indians, extended from
the short hand report taken of the proceedings by Mr. Dickieson, Private
Secretary to the Hon. Mr. Laird.

In the afternoon, Mr. Christie and Mr. Dickieson arrived from Lake

caux Indians, who make their
ined there, instead of going
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Qu'Appelle, and shortly afterwards proceeded to make the payments to the
Indians, under the treaty.

Tt was satisfactory to have this band dealt with, as they asserted claims
in the region covered by the Manitsba Post Treaty, but had not been
represented at the time it was made.

On the 22nd of September the Commissioners left Fort Ellice and arrived
at Fort Garry on ths afternoon of the 26th of that month, having been
absent a little over a month.

T have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient Servant,
ALEXANDER MORRIS,
Lieut.-Gov. N. W. T.
Tz HONORABLE
TiE SECRETARY OF STATE FOR THE PROVINCES,
Ottawa.

WiNNIPES, MANITOBA, 7th October, 1875.

SR, —We have now the honor to submit, for your information, our final
report in connection with our missions to the Indians included in Treaty No. 4.

As former reports have made you fully acquainted with the arrangements
that had been entered into previous to our departure from this place, any
further reference to them is unnecessary.

Having left Winnipeg on the 19th August, we arrived at Fort Ellice on
the 24th, the day appointed for the meeting the Indians of that place. The
same evening we had an interview with, and fully explained the terms and
conditions of the treaty to some of the Indians who were not present when
the treaty was concluded last year. Next morning, by appointment, we met
all the Tndians and explained to them the object of our mission, and, after
considerable discussion, made arrangements to commence paying the
annuities next day. This, however, was prevented by heavy rains, which
continued more or less to retard our operations on the two following days,
the 27th and 28th, but everything was satisfactorily concluded with this
band on the evening of the latter day, and on the following morning we
started for the Qu’ Appelle Lakes, accompanied by an escort of fifteen men
of the Mounted Police Force, under the command of Sub-Inspector McTllree,
which had arrived at Fort Ellics on the evening of the 26th, and reached
our desination on the forenoon of the 2nd September.

As you are aware, we had heard before leaving Winnipeg, that the number
of Indians assembled at the Qu'Appelle Lakes would be very large, but we
did not anticipate that so many as we found (nearly five hundred lodges)
swould be congregated.

We at once saw that the funds at our disposal to pay the annuities and
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gratuities would be inadequate, and availed ourselves of the opportunity
presented by the return of Major Irvine to Winnipeg, to forward a telegram
on the 5th September, requesting a further amount of six thousand dollars
t0 be placed to our credit ; and we may state here, though out of the order of
time, as we found after the first two days payments that we had still under-
estimated the number of Indians present, we transmitted a telegram to
Winnipeg by special messenger, on the 9th September, for a farther credit
of fifteen thonsand dollars.

On the 3rd September we met the Indians and explained the object of our
mission, and, for the benefit of those who were absent last year, the terms
and conditions of the treaty, and stated that we were now ready o fulfil so
many of the obligations therein contained as the Government were bound
to execute this year. The Indians declined saying anything on this occasion,
Dut wished to meet and confer with us the following day, as they had some-
thing they wished to speak about. They accordingly met us on the 4th, and
made several demands, one of which was that the annuities be increased to
twelve dollars per head. We replied that the treaty concluded last year
was a covenant between them and the Government, and it was impossible
to comply with their demands; that all we had to do was to carry out the
terms of the treaty in so far as the obligations of the same required. An
idea seemed prevalent among the Indians who were absent last year
that no treaty had been concluded then; that all which had been done at
that time was merely preliminary to the making of the treaty in reality,
which they thought was to be performed this year. The prevalence of this
opinion amongst them operated very prejudicially to the furthering of our
business, and we saw that until this was done away with it would be
impossible to do anything towards accomplishing the real object of our
mission. After a great deal of talking on their part, and explanation on
ours, the meeting adjourned until Monday morning, as it was necessary that

provisions should be issued to the different bands that evening for the
following day.

On Monday (the 6th) we again met the Indians, and as’they evidently
wished to have another day’s talking to urge the same demands they had
made on Saturday, we assured them all further discussion on the subject
was useless; that if they declined to accept the terms of the treaty we must
return and report to the Government that they had broken the promise made
last year. They then asked that we should report to the Government what
they had demanded. This we agreed to do.  After some further explana-
tion to those Chiefs who had not signed the treaty, the payment of the

ities and gratuities 1 continued by Messrs. Dickisson
and Forsyth on this and the three following days until completed, during
which time Mr. Christie conferred with the Chiefs as to the locality of their
reserves.

Six Chiefs who had not been present last year when the treaty was con-
cluded, agreed to accept the terms of the same, and signed their adhesion
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‘previous to being paid. The igned by them are
herewith.

The suits of clothes, flags, medals and copies of the treaty were given to
the Chiefs and headmen as they were paid, and on the 10th the ammunition
and twine were distributed, also provisions to each band for the return
journey to their hunting grounds,

We have the honor to be, Sir,
Your obedient servants,
W. J. CHRISTIE,
Indian Commissioner.

M. G. DICKIESON.

Report of the proceedings at the Conference between the Hon.
Alexander Moris, Lieut.-Governor of the North-West
Territories, the Hon. David Laird, Minister of the In-
terior, and W. J. Christic, Esq., the Commissioners ap-
pointed by Order in Council to treat with the Indians
inhabiting the country described in the

aid Order in Coun-
cil, the first conference having been held at Qu’Appelle,
September 8th, 1874

FIRST DAY'S CONFERENCE.

At four o’clock the Commissioners entered the marquee erected
for the accommodation of themselves, and the Indians, who in
in a short time arrived, shook hands with the Commissioners,
the officers of the guard, and other gentlemen who were in the
tent, and took their seats.

It having been noticed that Cote, *“ the Pigeon,” a leading
Chief of the Saulteaux tribe, had not arrived but that several of
his band were present and claimed that they had been sent to
represent him, His Honor the Lieut.-Governor instructed the
(acting) interpreter, William Daniel, to enquire why their
Chief had not come to meet the Commissioners, the white
chiefs?

To this question they answered, that he had given no reason.

His Honor, through the interpreter, told them that the
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